
www.eden.gov.uk Mr Matthew Neal
Deputy Chief Executive

Date: 9 January 2019

Town Hall, Penrith, Cumbria CA11 7QF
Tel: 01768 817817
Email: cttee.admin@eden.gov.uk

Dear Councillor A Todd 

Services Portfolio Holder Meeting Agenda - 17 January 2019
A meeting is to be held with Officers at 5.00 pm, on Thursday, 17 January 2019, in the 
Deputy Director Technical Services Office, Mansion House, Penrith to consider the 
following matters:

1  Declarations of Interest  

To receive declarations of the existence and nature of any private interests, both 
disclosable pecuniary interests and any other registrable interests, in any matter to 
be considered or being considered.

2  Electric Vehicle charging in Eden District Council car parks  (Pages 3 - 8)

To consider report TES6/19 from the Deputy Director Technical Services which is 
attached and which seeks to explain the electric vehicle charging options for Eden 
District Council car parks and to enable consideration to be given to enabling electric 
car charging points to be provided in certain Council car parks.
RECOMMENDATION that approval be given to:

1. the grant of a lease with a term of 5 years, with an option to extend by 
another 5 years,  to  Plug-N-Go  Ltd to enable an electric car charging point to 
be installed in the following Eden District Council car parks:

 Drovers Lane Car Park, Penrith;

 Penrith Leisure Centre; and

 Broad Close Car Park, Appleby.

2. the Deputy Chief Executive being given delegated authority to enter into 
appropriate legal agreements on behalf of the Council in respect of the lease 
and any other appropriate contractual arrangements.

Yours sincerely



www.eden.gov.uk 2

Matthew Neal
Deputy Chief Executive (Monitoring Officer)

Democratic Services Contact: 

Encs

For Attention

Portfolio Holder – Councillor A Todd

For Information by Email to: - All remaining Members of the Council



Report No: TES6/19
Eden District Council

Services Portfolio
17 January 2019

Electric Vehicle charging in Eden District Council car parks
Portfolio: Services Portfolio

Report from: Deputy Director Technical Services

Wards: Penrith North, Penrith East, Penrith Carlton, Penrith West, Penrith 
Pategill, Penrith South

OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

1 Purpose
1.1 To explain electric vehicle charging options for Eden District Council car parks 

and to enable consideration to be given to enabling electric car charging 
points to be provided in certain Council car parks.

2 Recommendation
2.1 That approval be given to:

(1) the grant of a lease with a term of 5 years,  with an option to extend by 
another 5 years,  to  Plug-N-Go  Ltd to enable an electric car charging point to 
be installed in the following Eden District Council car parks:

 Drovers Lane Car Park, Penrith;

 Penrith Leisure Centre; and

 Broad Close Car Park, Appleby.
(2) the Deputy Chief Executive being given delegated authority to enter into 
appropriate legal agreements on behalf of the Council in respect of the lease 
and any other appropriate contractual arrangements.

3 Report Details
3.1 Electric car ownership is predicted to rise, and electric vehicle charging 

infrastructure in Cumbria is poor. The nearest car charging point to Penrith is 
Rheged, then Tebay Motorway services. Most other charging points in the 
area are associated with hotels and tourist attractions, rather than catering to 
residential or commuter needs.

3.2 With Penrith being a cross road of major routes, the A66 and M6, the 
installation of more electric vehicle charging would encourage visitors to the 
area to stop off and charge their cars, rather than passing by to their 
destinations.

3.3 Five companies have been approached about expanding into the Eden 
District, but many do not cater to this demographic. Only Plug-N-Go Ltd (Plug-
N-Go) were able to put forward a proposal. The company has visited the 
Council’s car parks and produced a report on the viability of charging at each 

Page  3

Agenda Item 2



location. A copy of relevant sections of the viability report relating to the 3 
recommended sites is attached as Appendix A to this report. 

3.4 Plug-N-Go offer a variety of financing options and most appropriate solution 
appears to be Plug-N-Go’s fully funded option that does not require any 
capital investment or monthly payments.  Effectively the assets are the 
company’s to control, maintain and upgrade as technology updates.  The 
Council would receive a proportion of the profits for hosting the equipment. 
This option presents the least amount of risk to the Council.  It protects 
against rapid changes that may occur in this emerging technology and would 
manage the technical maintenance and customer service in relation to this 
product.

3.5 Plug-N-Go will cover the exploratory costs of sites, which includes installation, 
hardware and software costs. Plug-N-Go would look to work with the Council 
in quarterly meetings to manage the electric charging points. 

3.6 In the event that the arrangements prove popular and successful then 
consideration will be given to expanding the provision of car charging points 
and a further reports will be brought for the consideration of the Portfolio 
Holder or Executive as appropriate.

4 Policy Framework
4.1 The Council has four corporate priorities which are:

 Decent Homes for All;
 Strong Economy, Rich Environment;
 Thriving Communities; and
 Quality Council

4.2 This report meets the Strong Economy, Rich Environment Council corporate 
priority.

5 Consultation
5.1 Consultation has taken place with the Services Portfolio Holder and his 

comments have been taken into account. 

6 Implications
6.1 Financial and Resources
6.1.1 Any decision to reduce or increase resources or alternatively increase income 

must be made within the context of the Council’s stated priorities, as set out in 
its Council Plan 2015-19 as agreed at Council on 17 September 2015.

6.1.2 Plug-N-Go cover the exploratory costs of sites, which includes installation, 
hardware and software costs. There is not expected to be any loss of income 
on the car parks as they not at capacity. The potential income can be 
summarised below:

 

Page  4



2 hour typical session (7kW) £4.00

Energy costs == £0.12/kWh x 7x 2 £1.68

Gross income £2.32

Overhead and maintenance by company £1.25

Net income per 2 hour session £1.07

Annual income from 2 session/day - £1.07 x 2 
sessions x 250 days/ year

£535.00

Monthly income £44.00

6.2 Legal
6.2.1 Plug-N-Go require both a signed a letter of intent and an Electric Charging 

Point lease to be signed. 
6.2.2 The lease is generally set at 10 years because Plug-N-Go expect hardware 

upgrades around years 5-6. In this case a 5 year contract with an option 
exercisable by both parties to extend by an additional 5 years is 
recommended.

6.2.3 In relation to the power supply, Plug-N-Go take out the contract in their name 
for the purchase of  power supply and metering arrangements  and within this 
the standard charge for the meter and supply is fully borne by them through 
the contract term.

6.2.4 The proposals within the report do not constitute a procurement exercise. The 
proposals are more akin to the grant of a concession alongside a proposed 
lease arrangement. The proposals  are considered to be compliant with the 
Council’s to duty achieve value for money given that 5 companies were 
approached  to put forward a proposal and only one has submitted one. 

6.3 Human Resources
6.3.1 There are no Human Resources implications arising out of the proposal.
6.4 Statutory Considerations

Consideration: Details of any implications and proposed 
measures to address:

Equality and Diversity No impact on equality and Diversity arising from 
this report

Health, Social 
Environmental and 
Economic Impact

There is a positive outcome on the environment 
from the encouragement of electric cars.

Crime and Disorder No impact on crime and disorder

Children and 
Safeguarding

No impact on children and safeguarding

Page  5



6.5 Risk Management

Risk Consequence Controls Required
Fault from the electric 
car charging point

Potential fire Use of approved 
produces and 
ownership of product 
stays with company. 
Maintenance regime in 
place. Follow approved 
code of practice

Lack of support for 
technology to help 
reduce transmission 
fumes

Negative press Installation of electric 
vehicle charging points

7 Other Options Considered
7.1 The options are to approve the proposals within this report or reject them.

8 Reasons for the Decision/Recommendation
8.1 The introduction of electric charging points in the Council’s car parks and 

encouragement of the use of electric cars will help to reduce transport related 
emissions.

Tracking Information

Governance Check Date Considered
Chief Finance Officer (or Deputy) 22 December 2018

Monitoring Officer (or Deputy) 8 January 2019

Relevant Deputy Director 22 December 2018

Background Papers: None
Appendices: Appendix A –Relevant excerpts from Initial charging 

point report
Contact Officer: Emily Murphy, Engineering Officer

Page  6



Appendix A - Relevant excerpts from Initial charging point report

Town Hall / Drovers Lane: 
This car park is ideal for immediate and we would 
be looking to install at least 1 pair of 22kw fast 
charge points here as the site lends itself to shorter 
stay and or drivers looking for a quick charge or top 
up, whilst giving them close access to the town 
centre, picture to the right shows the ideal location 
of the charge point.

Penrith Leisure Centre:
This car park would be the very first one we would 
suggest developing for the following reasons;
• Continual footfall using the leisure centre 
• Bed & Breakfasts along Southend Road
• Premier Inn just over the way
• Sainsbury’s store nearby
Thinking of making the 9 bays into 8 with new 
markings and adding as phase 2 pairs of 22kw 
charge points and 2 pairs of 7.2kw so all users can 
take a fast charge, top up or overnight.

Penrith Leisure Centre, Southend Road 
Entrance:
Due to the location of the entrance and being very 
close to the A6 and the Shell garage it would lend 
itself to a rapid charge point and as you will see 
from the picture if you sat it between the 2 bays you 
would offer charging to both bays, you could to test 
the location install a pair of 22kw charge points.

Page  7



Appleby:
The town has no charging facilities at present and 
you have an ideal location to install a pair of 22kw 
charge points on which would site to the right hand 
side of the van in the picture, luckily the power is 
available on the bring building to the right hand side. 
We discussed that during the horse fair that the 
charge points be removed and replaced after the 
event each year.

You also have the scope to increase charge points 
as needed.

Page  8


	Agenda
	2 Electric Vehicle charging in Eden District Council car parks

